
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, December 7th, 2010.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




John Bernard, Vice-Chairperson (absent)



Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 




Steven Kessler, Board Member 



Susan Todd, Board Member 



Robert Foley, Board Member 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder, Board member

ALSO PRESENT:




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney

 



Mr. John Milmore, CAC member 




Mr. Ed Vergano, Director Department of Technical Services 



Chris Kehoe, Planning Department  




Mr. John Potts, CAC


*



*



*

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there will be a couple of changes to our agenda tonight.  One will be the removal of the final item under ‘new business’, the first and only item under ‘new business’: the application of Gas Land Cortlandt.  If there’s anybody here who has to do in any way with that application then please be advised they have been removed and will not be back on the agenda until we’ve been advised by our head of the Department of Technical Services, Ed Vergano.  That one will not happen tonight.  We will also have a vote that we have to bring to your attention as well, something that did not appear on the agenda.
Mr. John Klarl stated and the Ryan application, we have a proposed stipulation of settlement which I’d like to take a vote on to authorize me to sign it. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and that will come at the end…

Mr. John Klarl stated at the end of the agenda.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated at the end of the agenda actually.  Those would be the changes for tonight.  Can I have a motion to approve those changes please?

So moved, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*

ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF OCTOBER 5, 2010
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked can I have someone for a motion of the approval of the minutes from last…
So moved, seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question I have some corrections I’m submitting.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated before we move into the Resolution section for tonight I would have to be the bearer again of some sad news about the tenure of one of our members.  Susan Todd will be leaving the Board effective this month so this will be her last opportunity to be a part of the Planning hearings that we’re holding tonight.  I wanted to say that we have all enjoyed her tenure here.  We’ve been enriched by her expertise and her willingness to share it in issues of sustainability and environmental concerns.  Very often when we were in somewhat of a dilemma Susan had information or had contact’s information that in many instances proved very fruitful.  We will certainly miss that on the Board as well as her wonderful personality.  On behalf of the Board, obviously, I want to wish you the very, very best in whatever endeavors you pursue and we hope that you will from time to time come back and check in with us.  I’d like to encourage the members of the Board to say…
Mr. Robert Foley stated I’d like to say something… I first observed Susan in action before she was a member of the Board.  A number of years ago I used to sit over there where Jeff is and she was testifying and speaking as a concerned citizen about a particular issue, an application down on 129 and Mount Airy and I was impressed with her stick to-itiveness.  She came right back at the applicant or their experts or their attorney and got better answers.  She stood her ground and I think she’s brought that to our Board with a keen knowledge of our precious environment and ecosystem, biodiversity, the wildlife and the wetlands and the vital role they all play in the planning process.  Preservation and protection have always been her watch words.  On the Sunday morning site visits over the years and I’m not sure whether it’s more than 10 years or 12 years I think I’m at the 13 year mark myself, on these early Sunday mornings, whether it be Valeria, Furnace Dock, Mill Court Crossing or anywhere around the Town, we’d be out there and Susan would be out on the perimeter on the left or right flank as we used to say in the army, exploring a little more to really kind of track down the source of a water course or where the reptiles or amphibians were moving or the sounds of the peepers and I admired that I thought it brought another good aspect to our Board.  The plant species, everything she was into all the time.  I think we used to say “where’s Susan?”  Her creativity; when a project was about to be approved or moving through the process, she woulf consider the little creatures the turtle preserve at the Hollowbrook Golf Course, I believe was something she brought up at the beginning.  It sits there now down in the hollow below the 10th tee and it’s working.  The turtles are not eating the golf balls I think.  I think we asked first whether the turtles would do that.  More recently, the hospital renovations and all that process we went through.  As I recall it whether it was in the work session or here, Susan brought up the idea in the back where the wetlands were being guarded and preserved to turn that into something, I thought she said a rain garden or a meditation garden and from what I understand it wasn’t there but that has reached fruition.  There was a dedication event at the hospital last week I was told and Susan was there and the garden was her idea.  Another group, of course, sponsored and paid for the walkway garden but that was what Susan has been about and we’re going to miss you and I want to wish you good luck and Godspeed as you move on and we spend more quality and fun-filled time with your family, your friends and your wonderful film making.  Good luck.
Ms. Susan Todd stated thank you so much.  That was very nice.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I think I’ll miss Sue not only for her expertise when it comes to environmental matters, the contribution she’s made to the Board but for her comments since.  There’s a lot of times Sue’s said something that I and it was right there in front of us in plain sight but I often said “I wish I’d said that,” and I didn’t but Sue had the foresight and the knowledge and the perseverance to state the way she felt, stuck up for what she felt and to really change the course of how we work here and I thank her for that and we’ll miss her. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I hope most people realize that we are just 7 lay people on this Board and hopefully we all bring something different to this Board.  I think what Susan has brought was her keen interest in biodiversity, wetlands, and water courses and from my own personal perspective, she’s certainly has helped educate me in those matters and I think her role here on this Board will be missed and I think it’s going to be a difficult position to replace quite honestly because what you brought to this Board has really been something that’s been missing from this Board.  As I said, it’s opened our eyes in so many ways Susan and thank you for your service and we’ll miss you. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated unfortunately we’re like ships passing in the night.  I’m coming on the Board just as you’re leaving but as a CAC member I watched you over the years attending every meeting and your commitment to the environment and, as Tom said in terms of common sense and fairness about all the projects, I was impressed by and we definitely will miss you a lot.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I haven’t prepared anything but this is very nice to hear from all of you and I’m going to miss you and I figure, at this point, it’s been over 108 meetings that I’ve been at.  I’ve had two children since I’ve been on the Board.  I’ve got a lot more gray hairs but it’s been a real important part of my life for a long time and I have really valued hearing everything from the public and being a part of this process, being able to serve in this community.  I think Cortlandt is a fantastic place to live and we have so many wonderful people and natural resources and I’ve learned so much about the Town just being on the Board and exploring on the Sunday site visits in trying to not get lost on some roads that I didn’t even know existed.  I thank everybody and I wish everybody well and I am going to be around.  I’m going to follow some of these projects.  I definitely can’t give up everything and just thank you very much for your comments and good luck to everybody too.


*



*



*

RESOLUTIONS
PB 9-09      a.
Application of Brookfield Resource Management Inc., for the property of 2114 APR, LLC, for Site Development Plan Approval, a Renewal of a Junkyard Special Permit and  Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a recycling facility for scrap metal from end-of-life vehicles, as well as tires, all fluids, batteries, mercury switches, and other recyclables  that are part of the vehicle and for recycling of other end of life durable goods that are primarily constructed of metal at a facility located at 2105 & 2109 Albany Post Road (Route 9A) as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Brookfield Resource Management” prepared by Nosek Engineering dated April 22, 2010 (see prior PB 35-06).
Mr. David Steinmetz stated we have received a copy of the draft Resolution.  I appreciate the fact that staff got it to us and allowed us to review it as well as make some comments.  I’m also aware of what the Board discussed in the work session and the information that it got from the CAC.  My understanding is that you are going to ask Mr. Vergano to address that with the Town’s traffic consultant, Mr. Canning, as part of your Resolution. I have one question, it’s a minor item, John on condition #12 regarding the storm water management facilities, maintenance agreement, I’m assuming that that’s referencing more or less the standard storm water management agreement that we have used on other projects.  
Mr. John Klarl responded it is.  Mr. Wood just developed but it is along those lines yes. 

Mr. David Steinmetz asked we’ll be provided with a copy of the most recent update?

Mr. John Klarl responded absolutely.  You’re going to be the initial voyage for the agreement.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked the maiden voyage?  If you’ve got any questions for us Madame Chair or members of the Board, we do have our full development team here but we are anxious to secure an approval.  Mr. Malone and Brookfield have, as you know, attempted to make sure that your Board is very well aware of the nature of the operation.  You’ve been on site visits.  We’ve tried to make you well aware of what he has done in terms of time, energy, and money in terms of cleaning up a pre-existing condition that he purchased into and, as he’s told you in his own words, we’re real excited about having this facility moving toward full operation and being a genuine green recycling commercial activity here in the Town. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think any questions and concerns we have, have less to do with the actual manner of operation of the facility than with traffic and those kinds of concerns and there were several members, who during the work session did have some concerns or had questions.  I guess at this point we can ask.

Mr. Robert Foley stated we discussed the protocol and Mr. Canning was there and Mr. Potts from the CAC read a statement from the CAC. I think Mr. Schwartz was in the audience and I don’t know if that should be read in or paraphrased into the record now.  I don’t have a copy of it but it pointed out some concerns and issues that I had had early on and I know the CAC had.  We did talk to Mr. Canning, I think he’s here someplace, so I don’t know if he will speak  – I was concerned about the averaging and whether the busiest day of the week, I don’t want to get into a long lengthy thing, whether that would skewer the total of the five days or three or four of the days or two or three days had less volume and one or two busy days and then when you average it out it would average down but would it really show the true impact.  Was it actual speeds that would be done for the speed motions on 9A not posted speeds.  And there were some other things.  I don’t know if I can talk to them all.  I was also concerned about only one week of counting.  I think Mr. Canning did reply to that about having some type of specific very detailed table for the counter.  The person doing some of the counting would have all of those criteria right there from the get-go, right in front of them so that as this moved along and the data collection was being analyzed later would then include it or if we found out it didn’t include something we would have to go back to point 1 again.  That was brought up to try to get it right now before we accept the protocol into this and I believe we would work something into the Resolution to that effect.  I believe time limits, Steve and Jeff…
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I just added that the corrective measures would have to brought to us within 30 days and that would be under ‘e)’.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked are you thinking that -- the protocol is mentioned in condition #8.  you just mentioned the specific change that you want in the protocol which is fine so we’re going to make some changes in the protocol or do you want to then make some comment in the condition about changing the protocol to the satisfaction, addressing the CAC comments to the satisfaction of the Director of Technical Services but in addition to that, you mentioned a specific change to the protocol.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated correct, so subject to those changes.

Mr. John Klarl stated Chris, why don’t we put it in the protocol itself?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes, I think it’s better always to have it in the document if you can and we can make reference to it in the conditions.  We’re actually saying that when that motion is made, I guess later, that we’re going to incorporate recommendations from the CAC into the protocol document which would then be subject to the approval of the Director of Technical Services.  Yes?  Is that what we’re saying?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so we’re all clear about that. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked so that would be in the protocol in one of these conditions, condition a)?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded condition a) right.   Just one clarification on Mr. Rothfeder’s comment just so we’re certain we heard it correctly.  It was 30 days to come forward with a recommended remedial measure, not to implement something?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder responded correct. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s what I thought you said.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I think it’s a minor point, as I reviewed the protocol I didn’t see anything in there that mentioned gathering information from the State DOT on accident data in there and I guess here’s the problem is the surrounding area, what is that?  I think it would be appropriate to consider having the applicant take information that’s already been published if there is any accident data in that area to incorporate that into his report.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we would certainly have no objection to Mr. Bianchi’s recommendation.  Whatever’s publicly available, Mr. Fitzpatrick certainly has access to it and can work that into that report. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any other additional comments, concerns?

Mr. Robert Foley stated entrance/exit, that would be looked at down the road, so-to-speak, if there is a problem in the way it’s currently designed – if there’s something in there someplace where it would be a lighter curb cut or whatever. 
Mr. David Steinmetz responded absolutely.  I think that’s what we spent a lot of time with Mr. Canning discussing that that has to be examined particularly if there seems to be a need for it.  If there’s no need, then obviously the data should show that but we’re very well aware of that Mr. Foley and that was something your own consultant brought to our attention at the intro. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated because that southbound 9A possibility of a left turn lane, I know it’s not being done now, but I’ll find out in the future, that was a major concern also of the public, the safety angle. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated clearly going to have to be examined under the protocol.

Ms. Susan Todd stated there is also some addition of language in #14.  Mr. Klarl said “the applicant shall not accept construction or demolition debris,” just add “or demolition.”  Just to clarify that.  I make a motion that we approve Resolution #56-10.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the motion passes.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you all for your time and persistence.
PB 23-08    b.
Public Hearing: Application of John P. Alfonzetti, P.E., for the property of Angelo Cipriano, for Preliminary Plat Approval and a Tree Removal Permit for a 4 lot major subdivision of 9.25 acres for property located off of Mt. Airy Road E., southeast of Joseph Wallace Drive, as shown on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Preliminary 4 Lot Subdivision Mountain View Estates” prepared by John Alfonzetti, P.E. latest revision dated April 22, 2010.

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated I’m representing Mr. Angelo Cipriano.  We did just receive a copy of the draft Resolution.  Upon reviewing it we have no objections to any of the conditions, modifications.  We’ll accept it the way it is.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we adopt Resolution 57-10 approving the application.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
CORRESPONDENCE

PB 7-09    a.
Letter dated October 22, 2010 from David Steinmetz, Esq. as required by Condition #2 of Planning Board Resolution 1-10 to provide an update to the Planning Board on the operation of the site and any substantial code violations for Yeshiva Ohr Hameir and to request the 1st one-year time extension of Site Plan approval for property located at 141 Furnace Woods Road.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated on behalf of Yeshiva Ohr Hameir.  We sent in the correspondence as we’re required to under the Resolution.  We were originally going to be on your agenda last month and we were told at the 11th hour that staff wanted to have the fire inspector go out and complete the Town’s inspections.  We’re very pleased that Ms. Haight did go out there and conduct her Code inspection.  We received a copy of her memo indicating that, for the most part, the fire issues were all in accordance with Code.  There were some items that she recommended remedial measures.  Sounds like 90% of them were rectified on the spot while she was there and a few others were rectified in the coming week or so and she confirmed that all violations were corrected on November 30th.  Nothing was significant and everything was rectified.  She also conducted a student count analysis and confirmed that there were 199 beds in the dormitories and after discussions and some questions from Mr. Vergano, we did provide a letter from the head master Rabi Kanarek dated December 2nd confirming that there are actually 201 dormitory students, 6 students who live as family members with their parents who reside on site.  There are a total of 207, well beneath the occupancy cap of 225.  I wasn’t at your work session but Mr. Schwartz was.  I am well aware that we did have a recent Health Department inspection and that the septic system had an instance of failure that’s being rectified.  I’m also aware that a number of you questioned where we stand so let me give you an update on that.  We walked out of here in January of 2010 with our Resolution after spending over two years to secure those approvals and you recall that one of the things that my client wanted to do was have a public sewer connection that at the time the Town was quite clear was unwilling to accommodate and facilitate.  The night of this Board’s vote, the Vice Chairman who I wish was here this evening, said to my client and to me “we gave you a Resolution of approval but please don’t abandon the concept of a sewer.”  And, you should know, when we walked out of here in the middle of January of this year, we got contacted, subsequent to that, and again encouraged to examine the possibility of a sewer connection.  With some help from Mr. Vergano it was determined that there might be a way to use a smaller pipe in the public right-of-way that would be acceptable to the county and would allow for a physical connection to a municipal sewer line on Lafayette and though it would cost an awful lot of money, when examined over the course of the lifetime of the school and when taking into the account potential expenditures to upkeep and maintain the sewage treatment plant, it was worth looking at.  Ed will certainly tell you if the version of the story I’m telling you is anything other than he recalls, there were meetings with Ed and discussions simply about what kind of pipe could go in the Town road that would handle this.  Subsequent to that, my client, Mr. Ciarcia and I went down to the County Health Department.  We sat with County Health Department officials, who like Mr. Bernard, were extremely interested in my client considering a sewer connection.  We met with three officials in the Health Department.  We were well received by the County and we were urged to turn to the Town of Cortlandt and see if the Town of Cortlandt would then consider having us included in the Peekskill Sanitary Sewer District.  I don’t recall whether you all were copied on the Town Board’s correspondence to the County and I didn’t realize that although I glean that from hearing about the work session.  In July of this year it was determined by the Town Board that it would request an extension of the Peekskill Sanitary Sewer District.  In August of this year, a formal written request from the Town went to the County asking the County to include the Yeshiva property in the County Sewer District so that a sewer line could conceivably be constructed.  Since August we’ve been waiting for feedback from the County.  Ed knows it.  Ed was copied on it and certainly well aware of that.  In the ensuing 4 or 5 months, the County has been making a determination whether they want to see the Yeshiva included as an in-district sewer connection or an out of district sewer connection.  Either way, it would be a sewer line.  It would run the same essential route, same essential piping but it’s subject to the County.  I’m still waiting for the County to tell me that.  I’m still waiting for a formal response and unless Ed, Chris or anyone else has received something from the County that I’m not aware of, my client is still waiting for the County to tell us how that will happen.  I can assure you of one thing.  If there’s a way to do a sewer, which was my client’s preference before I was retained in this matter three years ago, and I think it was many people on this Board’s preference, we’re going to try to do that.  If it can’t be done then obviously the sewage treatment plant, which we spent a lot of time and a lot of money reviewing and approving, would have to be built.  Where are we right now?  I have a client right now who would very much like to pursue the approvals that it spent a lot of time, money and energy securing.  We can’t do anything without the sewer connection.  You may not remember, but the way you drafted your Resolution you precluded my client from doing the buildings and getting an approval and a certificate of occupancy until the sewer sewage treatment plant was first built.  You made a determination to put effluent discharge as the horse in front of the cart.  If we were allowed to build the buildings we could pursue the buildings now but we have to deal with the sewer issue.  Right now I’m hoping that the County of Westchester gets back to the Town and to my client and ultimately to your Board so that we can resolve this.  I’ve been in touch with George Oros, we’ve been in touch with the County Executive, we’ve been in touch with representatives of the Health Department of the Department of Environmental Facilities.  It’s the Town’s application, technically in front of the County right now so I’m anxious to see it resolved.  Quite frankly, I think that this most recent incident with the Health Department is going to actually help me and my client because Mr. DiSilva’s most recent inspection report says he wants to see a permanent course of action charted.  I have a feeling that he, the guy who actually goes out and inspects, has absolutely no idea that his County Health Department, the folks above him, have not responded to the Town on this sewer district expansion.  I can assure you that now that I’ve gotten this inspection report, we’re going to be in contact with Mr. DiSilva to make sure he speaks to the other folks in his department. 
Mr. Steven Kessler stated I guess what I’m confused about David is that with everything that’s happened with the septic system there and in your last representations at previous Board meetings was that you were having this septic system pumped every day so why is there now an incident and what exactly is the incident that the Department of Health has cited you on?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded first of all Steve, the septic system was not being “pumped every day” it was being pumped frequently.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I got the impression it was every other day…more than once a week.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I can’t speak to the frequency – it was not every day, whether it was once a week it was frequently.  The good news is that for 6-8 months they really had it under control.  There were incidents.  They were being addressed.  Mr. Ciarcia was making modifications in conjunction with the Health Department about which of the septic fields to send effluent to.  They actually did a real good job of managing this with effectively band aids over the course of the last 6 to 8 months.  There was an incident most recently.  It’s unfortunate.  It occurred.  It was dealt with immediately and it’s being addressed now.  Pumping, they’d increased the frequency.  Unfortunately, what happened is, as I understand it and maybe Ed can speak to it with more knowledge, there was a very substantial rain on the day this occurred.  It was probably the most substantial rain we’ve had in quite some time.  It had something to do with soil saturation which resulted in, as I understand it, in this most recent incident.  I’m hoping, Steve, that if anything I can use this as impetus for the County to make its decision on how they’re treating this.  We need to, under the compromise order that the Yeshiva entered into with the County Health Department this year, we need to make a determination with the County whether we’re going with a sewage treatment plant or with a sewer connection.  We’re kind of waiting for the governmental authorities that have jurisdiction here to make a decision. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I’m very concerned with the continuing deteriorating condition.  I think you downplayed a lot of the findings.  I think that one result was abandonment of a building.  If I recall reading that, as a result of this inspection because it was in such terrible shape that it was unsafe to have it.  While I may agree with the overall solution being a sewer connection versus a sewage treatment plant, it was your client that chose to go that route, spent a lot of time and money and our time to do that and now we’re looking at I don’t know how much longer to go the other route.  When is it going to end?  How long is it going to take?  In the meantime, we have deteriorating conditions at the facility which pose a safety hazard to the students.  While I’m mentioning safety, let me just get in a comment about the continuing walking of the students on the roads.  I’ve seen many times where there potentially could have been a serious accident.  Students just continue to walk two, three, four abreast on the roads.  We tried to tell the Rabi to advise the students not to do that but that’s a sort of a side issue.  My concern was how long is it going to take?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded Mr. Bianchi, the best answer to you is that the County Health Department order requires that by February of next year there’s got to be plans in front of them either for the treatment plant or…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked February 2011?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded correct and that date was selected by the Health Department because the remedial measures have to be implemented in due course thereafter.  We’re at a point now where we’re leaning on the Health Department to help make a final determination as to which direction this is going.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated just for clarity.  The sewer connection concept that Mr. Steinmetz is referring to is not the same sewer connection that was proposed by the applicant about two years ago.  This bypasses the problematic Steven Lane pump station.  It goes further down stream up Lafayette Avenue to an existing sewer manhole.  I just want to make that clear. 
Mr. David Steinmetz stated it’s a much longer run, Ed’s right, and it was a solution designed to avoid running into that issue all over again.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so what remediation is the Department of Health looking for in February?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded right now the Department of Health is waiting to make a decision.  I don’t want to just put a finger on the Department of Health.  It’s the County because in order to put you into a County Sewer District, it actually requires a recommendation from the Department of Environmental Facilities (DEF), recommendation from the Department of Health (DOH) and then ultimately avoid a vote by the County Board of Legislators, that’s what the Town has set in motion.  The Town has not heard back from the County or from the County Board of Legislator’s expanding…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but you said February ’11 they’re looking for remediation?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded they’re looking for plans, a commitment.  They know that it can go one of three different ways.  It can go sewage treatment plant, it could go sewer line out-of-district, it could go sewer line in-district.  From a practical standpoint, as I understand it and I’m not an engineer but my understanding, correct me if I’m wrong Ed, is essentially the same pipe and the same road whether you’re in-district or out of district.  Am I right?  You should have all been copied on a letter that I just sent to the Town Board a week ago, because once I got to a point where I’m struggling to get the County to make a final decision I learned from Mr. Sciarcia that we need to prepare a route survey which is basically a survey showing the route of the sewer line and that’s got to go to the County if this is going to be either an in-district or an out-of-district sewer connection.  I wrote to the Town Board because I want to know that the Town Board is comfortable whether this is in or out-of-district, it doesn’t require anything from your Board, it’s basically a street opening treatment but we want the Town Board to be aware.  We wrote a letter saying to them, in essence, we’re about to commit to a $35,000 route survey.  We don’t want to find out that the Town has an objection to the sewer line.  We don’t expect it would because the Town Board set this in motion.  
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated let me make sure the record’s clear on this.  You are going to submit by February 2011 a plan to the Board of Health is it?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded Tom, I’m not certain whether it’s just the Board of Health…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated or whoever, the County, for a plan to go one way or the other. 

Mr. David Steinmetz responded that’s correct and any help that we can get from this Board on having the County make a final decision on whether we are in or out-of-district is certainly appreciated. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you just said you should be indifferent to that. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we are essentially indifferent.  There’s a nominal cost differential but it’s by no means significant.  Steve, it’s the same sewer line, it’s the same $35,000 route survey and we get connected to the same County sewer line.  In one instance we’re included in the County sewer district in another we’re not.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and you need that legislative act by the County Board?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded the correct answer to that as I understand it is the in-district requires a legislative act of the County Board and out-of-district requires a contract from the County Board of Acquisition and Control or something to that effect?  It’s not the Board of Legislators but it’s…

Mr. Robert Foley asked but if you need either way, if you have to wait on the County Board is that a lengthy process to be on their agenda?  I know somewhat about it, the sewer district.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I can tell you Mr. Foley that the minute the Town Board made the decision to request the extension, I corresponded with Legislator Testa, Legislator Burton and Legislator Kaplowitz all of which I thought might have an interest both environmental and public to facilitate this being done as expeditiously as possible giving them the details of the fact that I have a client with an aging septic system.  I have a paper trail that I asked the local government officials to be of help on this.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked it wouldn’t have that much of a volume impact to Peekskill Sanitary Sewer District?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded it’s insignificant.  23,000 gallons today max. capacity under DEC formula.  It’s more like 16,000 gallons per day. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I brought it up because sometimes Peekskill is concerned about more volume into the sewer district. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I don’t think the volume of the plant is so much an issue.  I believe they have an excess of about 3 million gallons per day of available capacity.  A more relevant issue at this point is really the capacity of the sewer system leading to the plant itself.  That has to be evaluated.  I know there’s some capacity issues that have to be looked at closely.  

Mr. David Steinmetz asked by whom Ed?

Mr. Robert Foley stated the process may take a little longer than we think.
Mr. Ed Vergano responded typically, to get into a district, which I know we’re talking about something different here, we’re talking about out-of-district user, but to get into the district it takes the Board of Legislators, on average, between 9 months and about a year and a half.  That’s been our experience. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated just to underscore that, that’s precisely why in May of this year I went and convened a meeting at the Health Department because I didn’t want to take my client down the path of a sewer line despite the fact that some on your Board encouraged it, others had encouraged it for environmental reasons.  I didn’t want to go down that path if I was going to find ourselves delayed for over a year.  I was told that to the extent possible, it would be expedited.  I’m standing in front of you in December and your Town Board made this request back in August.  

Mr. Ed Vergano stated based on a request from the Yeshiva.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated yes, no question.  I mean, it wasn’t sua sponte nobody’s suggesting that.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked what would be the kickback to the treatment plant?  What would have to happen that you’d have to go back to that?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded County would have to say that they’re a) not putting us in a sewer district, b) that they are not entering into a contract and the Health Department at that point would say “you’ve got to move to the sewage treatment plant.”  All of that is kind of teed up.  We’ve spent, as you know Mr. Rothfeder, you sat through all those meetings, we got as far as basically flow confirmation with DEC.  It’s really just plant design and then implementation. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked but that starts in February 2011 and then that’s when that clock begins. 

Mr. David Steinmetz responded correct. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated that could take another year. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that’s my point as well.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you’ll still have the issues with the septic. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it’s costing them to upkeep and pump there’s no question about it but Steve, I couldn’t start building a sewer line at a cost in excess of a million dollars until I knew somebody’s going to let me connect it at the other end and we’re not about to start spending a million dollars building a sewage treatment plant if there’s a possibility of building a sewer line.  Again, the Resolution doesn’t allow us to begin building and using buildings until we have that resolved.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated but the reality is that if you were to build the sewage treatment plant you’d have that operation a lot sooner than you would a sewer line.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded at this point, I can’t – had it been commenced originally, that’s true.  Today, I can’t answer that.  I don’t know which is faster at this point. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that’s only because 11 months have passed since we’ve passed a Resolution here and in those 11 months basically nothing has been done. 

Mr. David Steinmetz responded you know what Tom, that’s not a fair statement because on my client’s side of the ledger, a lot has been done.  They’ve been doing everything they can to try to get a sewer line connection and that was something that they were encouraged to do by a lot of government officials, including this Board.  We’ve spent time, we’ve spent money.  We’ve spent meetings.  We’ve spent engineering fees trying to do this so it’s not fair to say.  I actually want to cover one other thing that David Wald reminded me of, in the last year, roofs have been replaced.  There have been upgrades on site in terms of using low water impact shower heads, toilets, etc.  They haven’t been implemented throughout the entire facility and if we’re going into the next year of this probably are going to have to be implemented throughout the entire facility and that was one of the recommendations of the Department of Health.  They’ve tried to use low water utilization devices.  You’re right there clearly was a structure that no children were in that was in a poor condition and the Department of Health made a determination that it had to be put out of use.  There were no students at risk or in there.  It was basically used as a storage area for service. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated speaking for myself, my frustration is that this goes on and on and on and we don’t see any improvements and now you’re changing gears, which I’m not saying is the wrong way to go in the long run but we have a deteriorating facility and safety is a very big concern of mine. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated and it is of ours and Tom, I share the frustration because you know how much heart and soul some of us, David Wald included, have put in to try to get this to happen and nothing would make me happier than standing next to you at a ribbon cutting in front of the new Dodge City building.  I’m convinced that we will do that.  

Mr. Ed Vergano stated one other issue that was brought up by one of our residents regarding the population relates to the state’s BEDs, again I’m using an acronym.  Records and the federal FIASP numbers, I understand you did some research David?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I did do some research and I can confirm that neither BEDs nor FIASP is actually an enrollment documentation.  It’s in connection with the receiving federal and other funds and grants in connection with students.  The buildings report is in connection with state accreditation for high school aged boys.  The FIASP report is in connection with securing federal PELL grants.  When I learned that and I learned that neither of those forms are actually moment in time enrollment data and you had asked me for that – first of all I told you that your own Town inspector went out and actually counted beds and she confirmed the number but because that didn’t sound like it was sufficient for you, I asked the Rabi to prepare a statement which I submitted to you which gives a grade by grade breakdown of a current enrollment number of 207 so you’ve got that.  As I’ve explained to you, and as I think we’ve explained in the past, the FIASP and the BEDs report documents capture a full year.  They actually show student population for a total year which includes people who come in and leave the school and new people coming in all during that year.  In addition, because one is for post-secondary and one is for secondary – one is for high school kids and one is for post high school kids.  In the Yeshiva the boys graduate in 12th grade in January and they then become post secondary.  In fact, the report would double count the high school graduating class of 30 12th grade boys.  They would be counted twice in one year.  Once they’d be counted on the high school document and then they’d be counted on the post-secondary document.  You asked me for an enrollment figure Ed, and I encouraged you to have your own inspector to go out to count for herself.  You told me she did and then I was pleased to see she put it in writing.  You then asked me to supply you with documentation and I have given you a grade by grade breakdown of current enrollment.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but given the grade by grade breakdown shouldn’t we be able to give those two reports and adjust for the people that move from one tier to the next?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded the two reports don’t run on the same concurrent annual year.  They don’t take into account that boys graduate from one grade and move into the next and it doesn’t take into account who leaves and comes during the year.  The answer to your question Steve, it would be very close but it wouldn’t be identical because it doesn’t take into account the dropping out of certain students. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so you’ll give us those reports?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded if you think that they’re meaningful and you’ve explained what they’re for I’m happy to take that back to my client…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we’ve got on the record your explanation so yes I’d like to see them thanks.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I’ll take that back to my client. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated because we did get those reports I believe as part of the original application.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded absolutely true.  And I think we tried to explain at that time the reason they were requested at that time was because at that point nobody had gone out and actually did a physical bed count. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but it was also used to help determine the number of students at the facility were at the peak to determine what the upper limit would be. 

Mr. David Steinmetz responded at the peak, that’s correct. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think for consistency we should have those documents as well because they were sort of the foundation for a lot of the work that we did here in making a determination.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked just out of curiosity, is there a violation for a student occupancy?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded no, not that I’m aware of.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated because you sent an inspector out there to check that, that’s why…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I didn’t know we sent them out.  I saw the report where they said there were 199 beds, you said there were 201 students I’m sitting here wondering where the other 2 are sleeping but that’s okay. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated she obviously missed 2 beds.  It’s very possible that there could have been new students coming in, in that intervening period.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I understand.  I wasn’t going to raise it.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the number went up, not down.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is everybody finished with their comments or concerns? 

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I make a motion that we approve Resolution 58-10 for the first one-year time extension. 

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we will get back to you with the information and we will keep you fully apprised of the situation with regards to the sewer and again, I encourage all of you, any of you who are interested to provide some help to us.  As I said, the Town Board has certainly tried to facilitate this as has Ed and I’m hoping that we can end up with the best solution which would be a prompt sewer connection.  Thank you. 

PB 3-09    b.
Letter dated November 1, 2010 from Anthony Russo and Michelle Robbins of AKRF transmitting comments on the Pondview Commons Site Development Report for the 56 unit Residential Reuse Special Permit located on Route 6. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we receive and file this letter.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 21-05    c.
Letter dated November 12, 2010 from Jesse Stackhouse and John DeIulio requesting the 2nd ninety-day extension of Final Plat approval for the Hillside Estates subdivision located on Locust Avenue.
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we approve Resolution 59-10.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 23-04  d. Letter dated November 15, 2010 from Edmund Coletti requesting Planning Board approval of an approximately 890 sq. ft. addition for a new MRI machine at the Hudson Valley Hospital Center.  

Mr. Ed Coletti stated from Hudson Valley Hospital.  I’m Vice President of Facilities.  Currently on the north side of the campus, the rear side of the campus, we have an existing MRI and a trailer that’s approximately 900 square feet at grade elevation.  What we’re proposing is that MRI is sun setting, it needs to be replaced and rather than replace it again and the trailer we’d like to cantilever off the first floor, remove the trailer and install the MRI up on the first which would then allow for nothing on the ground level.  It would also put the MRI adjacent to an existing MRI in our radiology suite which would also be a lot easier for patients when they come in, they don’t have to go back outside to go to the MRI trailer.  Everything would be enclosed in one location.
Mr. Ed Vergano asked that’s in the back of the complex?

Mr. Ed Coletti responded correct.  It’s on the north side.  It’s in the back of the complex on the north side. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked is it like in a parking area now?

Mr. Ed Coletti responded basically, the trailer is in a parking area and when the trailer leaves exactly right to the left of it would be where this cantilever extension would be.  The cantilever’s going to replace the trailer.  It just would also free up space on the ground level. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked would you pick up a few other parking spaces?

Mr. Ed Coletti responded yes, pretty much.  It’s not so much for the parking space, it’s more for we have to replace the machine…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and to have it connected to the building so people don’t have to go outside. 

Mr. Ed Coletti stated it makes more sense for the patients that are coming in through the building then they have to go back outside to get into a trailer to have their treatment.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked what’s the size of the cantilever?

Mr. Ed Coletti responded 890 square feet and the trailer is approximately 1,000 square feet. 

Mr. Ed Vergano asked what would be below the cantilevered section?  Would it be parking?

Mr. Ed Coletti responded it would just be open.  It’s actually a walkway currently, it would stay a walkway.  It’ll be two piers coming down to support the cantilever. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated it looks like it’s all part of the building.

Mr. Ed Coletti responded exactly but it’s – the campus slopes to the back so it’s the first floor but it’s open below. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I guess I’m not spatially built right but I don’t understand what you’re saying.  I’ve seen that trailer, I’ve actually been in it and it seems as if you walk up a ramp to get into it.
Mr. Ed Coletti responded correct.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked why is this considered a second floor?

Mr. Ed Coletti responded that’s ground level, behind it is the building.  The first floor of that building is above the trailer.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the building you’re talking about is where you’re going to take your room…

Mr. Ed Coletti stated we’re going to bump out the first floor elevation of the existing building which would be above the trailer and the trailer would go away. 

Ms. Susan Todd asked do you have any drawings of this?

Mr. Ed Coletti responded we provided some plans.  We didn’t do renderings or elevations at this point because we weren’t sure how much further we were going to go.  We spoke with Ed and he suggested that we put in the correspondence to at least present it to the Planning Board.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and it’s accessible from inside the existing – the regular hospital building?  And also a way from the outside?

Mr. Ed Coletti responded no, that wouldn’t be accessible from the outside. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked no exit?

Mr. Ed Coletti responded with an MRI you have to control the entrance so it would be adjacent to the existing MRI.  You’d only be able to get to the MRI from the inside of the hospital. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked the MRI the way it exists now is in the radiology department off to the right as you go into radiology?

Mr. Ed Coletti responded yes, you have to go into radiology and get really far back into the radiology suite.  They control the access due to the fact that you can’t get metal close to the MRI.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated the size of the expansion relative to the size of the first floor shown on MRI P-1 plan which you have.  It looks like a very, very small percentage of the overall space. 
Mr. Ed Coletti responded we’re also removing the trailer that’s been there for quite some time. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there is a room in here that says something about x-ray, what is that?

Mr. Ed Coletti responded that’s existing.  That’s the existing portion of the building.  The highlighted section is the extension which would show the MRI equipment room, which the equipment has to be separate from the MRI and then you have a control room where the tech. is overseeing the patient. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated I make a motion that we approve it by motion subject to ARC approval.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 20-06    e.
Letter dated November 18, 2010 from Patrick Bell, P.E. requesting the 4th six-month time extension of Preliminary Plat approval for the Picciano Subdivision located on Maple Avenue.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we adopt Resolution 60-10.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 1-08     f.
Letter dated November 19, 2010 from Joel Greenberg, R.A. requesting a change of use from four (4) retail spaces to one amusement and recreation space for indoor batting cages for the Patrick McCarney site located at 2305 Crompond Road.
Mr. Joel Greenberg stated as we spoke at the work session, Mr. McCarney has received approval of this Board, as you said, and has been trying to rent that space in the front for some time now.  He was able to get this gentleman who is going to be doing this particular type of use.  It’ll take up the entire building so it’ll be one use for the entire building.  There are no proposed changes to the site, the building at all, exterior-wise.  The only change is on the sign which we’re going to use the same boxed sign that’s there now and just put the new letters in for this new use and that’s it.  All the fees have been paid to the Town as indicated in the original Resolution and I believe we’ve met all those conditions. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think there was also – did you mention the fact that the cars…

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded oh yes, this Board had approved, because again Mr. McCarney could not rent the building the auto dealership next door had requested that a certain number of cars be allowed to be parked there.  This will now be eliminated and the connection will be eliminated. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody who has any questions, concerns?

Mr. Robert Foley stated we approve this application by motion.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

       g.
Adopt 2011 Planning Board Meeting Schedule.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we adopt the meeting schedule for 2011 with the exception that the January meeting will begin at 8:00 p.m.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye."

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so the 2011 Planning Board meeting schedule is also adopted.  We should make note too that we will be having work sessions beginning in 2011 that will be separate from our regular meeting sessions.  That is a major change for this Board.  We will be having two meetings in any given month.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated the work session will be the Thursday before the Tuesday regular meeting.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes. 



*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARINGS (ADJOURNED) 

PB 24-08    a.
Public Hearing: Application of JJB Properties Inc., for the property of Homard Prod. Co. Inc., for Site Development Plan Approval and a Tree Removal Permit for the storage of 693 vehicles on a 5.1 acre parcel of property located on the west side of Arlo Lane as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan for Curry Automotive” prepared by Joel L. Greenberg, R.A. latest revision dated September 21, 2010 (see prior PB 8-00).

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated as we discussed at the work session I think if I just read the letter into the record it will explain exactly what’s transpired and what we want to do.  As you are aware Curry has several dealerships which you have approved for Cortlandt Boulevard and Westbrook Drive.  That’s the Toyota, Subaru and Hyundai.  “The purpose of the Arlo Lane sight is to store vehicle inventory.  During the selling months which is basically from March through November, the vehicle inventory levels are significantly less than the slower winter months.  The manufacturers, however, deliver the same number of cars just about every month.  So, from December through February when car sales are down, the need for storage is greater and that is the reason for the 693 cars.  As I’m sure you’re aware, the site’s completely surrounded as follows: on the west side by the Bear Mountain Parkway which is well screened with trees and foliage, on the south by another manufacturing building, which is across the street on Arlo Lane, the east side by the Town of Cortlandt Department of Works and the north side by a well screened area with trees, foliage and a large wetland.  The site will operate as follows: cars will be brought to the site and will remain parked at the site until they are sold.  They will not be started or accessed during this period.  There will be no employees assigned to work out of the Arlo Lane site, only the occasional dropping off of cars and picking up of cars as they are sold.  As you can see from the aerial view which you have on your map, there are no residences that will be able to see the site.  It is also not visible from the Bear Mountain Parkway.  This is one of the reasons that this particular site was selected.  There was a chain linked fence along Arlo Lane which will be kept locked at all times except when cars are delivered and/or removed.  This is obviously the perfect site for this type of use” and we request that – again, you’ve got the final drawings.  You have a proposed Resolution which we have no objection to and we hope that you will approve it.  I can answer any questions. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any questions for Mr. Greenberg?  Everything is clear as far as you’re concerned Ed, on this application?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded just for the Board’s edification there was about 200 spaces approved for the same site some years ago.  We’re going from 200 to about 600 about a three-fold increase which is pretty substantial.  These cars will be parked on an existing slab of a demolished building – would just be further demolished and there’ll be water quality basins and a detention pond.  I think that it’s a very tight fit for this site.  You’ve all seen the site.  You’ve all seen pictures of the site.  Mr. Greenberg has mentioned that there will not be starting or stopping of engines of any vehicles.  I’m just curious, what’s the predicted traffic flow to and from the site during the busy periods?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded Bob, how often will trailers be coming to the site?  It’s approximately 10 cars a day.  Again, they will just be brought in there.  They’ll be parked and they won’t be touched again until they’re sold. 

Mr. Ed Vergano asked I said during the busy period that you’re talking 10 cars a day on a busy period?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded yes.  Again, they’re being brought.  They’re being dropped at the dealerships and then brought over to the site.  As Ed said, which I think is really important for this Board, is the fact that this site right now is being used partially for parked cars which was approved for Mr. Geis many years ago and there were several contractors at the site.  There was no storm water pollution prevention plan for the site which we have done.  There’s an extensive – if you look at the map, you’ll see that there’s an extensive storm water plan for attenuation basin, a silting basin which will all be planted with wetland type plants.  The site, as I mentioned, there are a very few trees that are taken down and all of the steep slopes are not being touched.  All of the trees on the steep slopes are not being touched.  All the trees on the border of the property are not being touched.  If anything, the site will be tremendously improved with the landscaping that’s there, with the fact that the attenuation basins and the silting basins will all be planted with wetland plants.  If anything, the site will be improved.  If you’ve gone to the site over the last three or four months, the contractors, they have a lot of debris there, they have trailers there which is certainly not a pretty sight and also as Mr. Vergano said, the old building in the front which is basically just a slab and maybe walls about 4 or 5 feet high, that is all going to be taken down.  If anything, the site will be improved and the fact that we have a storm water pollution plan will improve the entire environment of the site and I think, again, if you look at the aerial view you’ll see that this site is well screened.  Nobody’s going to see it from any house, because there are no houses around it and, again, DPW uses, manufacturing uses.  Arlo Lane does not lead to any residences so I think this is a perfect site for this use and it will basically provide the inventory for the three dealerships that you approved at Cortlandt Boulevard and Westbrook Drive.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think myself and a couple of other members of the Board are really not terribly happy with the large number of cars that are going to be parked there but we will probably go ahead and exceed to a motion to approve this.  I just hope that there will be some measure of control in terms of the number of cars and the movement and then the starting and the stopping and that kind of thing because in fact, it could become a real nuisance if there isn’t some kind of strict control there. 
Mr. Joel Greenberg responded that’s a very good question that you bring up and I think we have through the good offices of Ed and Chris, there are certain restrictions on the Bear Mountain Parkway so that the concern about traffic will be controlled because if you look at our site plan, there are only certain hours in which cars can be brought there and they’re not obviously during the busy hours when the Bear Mountain Parkway is taking rush hour people, people going to work so that we’ll be controlled very carefully.  As I said, the cars will only be brought in and out as they are sold at the times that they’re allowed to be brought out. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated they would be individual movements of the cars.

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated yes, we’re not taking out 20 cars at a time.  What will happen is an employee will be brought over from one of the dealerships, get in the car, take it out and bring it to the dealership.

Mr. Robert Foley asked they go directly up to Route 6 from Bear Mountain Parkway?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded yes, exactly and basically the proximity of that site to the Route 6 site is fairly close. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we do have a Resolution here tonight in attempt to expedite this for you.

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated I would really appreciate that very much. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the motion will be to close the public hearing…does anybody want to talk to this particular application?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I move that we close the public hearing and adopt Resolution 61-10.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated thank you very much, Happy Hanukah, Merry Christmas, Happy New Year and Susan lots of luck to you. 
PB 21-08    b.
Public Hearing: Application of Nida Associates for Preliminary Plat Approval of a 3 lot major subdivision of a 4.28 acre parcel of property located at the northeast corner of Albany Post Road (Route 9A) and Baltic Place as shown on a drawing entitled “Preliminary Plat for Nida Associates, Inc.”, prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated February 9, 2010 (see prior PB 21-03).

Mr. John Klarl stated Madame Chairperson I can bring you up-to-date quickly what I described at the work session and that is Nida Associates has two applications; one before our Board and one before the Zoning Board of Appeals.  At the Zoning Board of Appeals’ last meeting in October the applicant presented a revised plan which went from 4 lots to 3 lots and in that revised plan, the applicant combines the lot containing the sewage treatment plant with the lot containing the office building, then a second lot is the A&P Supermarket lot, the third lot is the Bank lot.  The Zoning Board of Appeals looked favorably on this 3 lots subdivision plan.  So, the Zoning Board of Appeals closed the public hearing and reserved decision and the Zoning Board of Appeals now wants to adopt a D&O but they don’t want to do so until the Planning Board’s ready to adopt its Resolution.
Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco asked John, can you describe where we are for me and the Board as far as the public hearing goes?  Do we have an open public hearing at the moment?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded this is the third public hearing.  The last public hearing the applicant asked us to adjourn.  We had a public hearing in September on this as well but we needed the Zoning Board of Appeals to act first and then it was adjourned last month because the Zoning Board of Appeals had not yet acted and that’s why we’re back today.

Mr. John Klarl responded maybe I stand corrected.  I think at the November 3rd meeting we adjourned this to the January meeting.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated yes we actually did adjourn it to January but the letter came in and they requested to be put on the December and then when you and I talked with the Zoning Board they had already acted and figured we’d had already put it back.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing, is there anybody here have something that they need to address concerning this application?  

Ms. Susan Todd stated I make a motion that we close the public hearing and prepare a Resolution for the next meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 1-07     c.
Public Hearing: Scope for an Environmental Impact Statement for the application of Mark Giordano, for the property of Ruth Cohen, for Preliminary Plat approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 6 lot major subdivision of  a 23.4 acre parcel of land located on the south side of Upland Lane, south of Mt. Airy Road, as shown on a  drawing entitled “Alternate Layout “A” with Rain Gardens Preliminary Plat” dated December 29, 2009, “Alternate Layout “A” Tree Preservation Plan”, dated August 20, 2009 and “Upland Road Improvement Plan” latest revision dated May 24, 2010 all prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. and a drawing entitled “Landscape Plan for the Development, Upland Estates” prepared by Tim Miller Associates, Inc. dated August 20, 2009.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated our attorney is recused and in his sted we will have Karl Lodes who will be the council to the Board for this application.
Mr. Brad Schwartz stated on behalf of the applicant.  We are here tonight for the continuation of the public hearing on the draft scope.  As we all know we’ve been here for months hearing extensive comments on what started out as a table of contents for an expanded part III EAF.  After your Board pos. dec. the project we’re now here on the draft scope and you have before you tonight a modified scope as you acknowledged at the work session that our professional staff and your staff have worked on and this is a document now that we believe is ready to be adopted, that identifies the potential significant impacts of the project which we will then be required to go back to study and analyze the DEIS.  We’re here tonight Madame Chair, members of the Board to ask for your Board to adopt and approve the scope that’s currently before you.  I was at the work session so I know a couple of issues came up that I would like to address and Ralph Mastromonaco is here as well to help with addressing any of the more technical issues.  First, there was a question about whether or not we’re going to be responding formally in a comment/response type format to the different technical letters that have been submitted to date by the consultants.  That comment/response format is really more akin to an FEIS.  The comment letters have been submitted to date have certainly helped inform the contents of the scope and how it’s evolved over time but because now we’re doing a DEIS, we’re going to be affirmatively addressing these issues per the scope.  We have agreed to include the correspondence in the report as an appendix.  The DEIS hearing stage, the neighbors and their consultants will have another opportunity to review the DEIS, make comments then in the FEIS, as the customary practice and required by SEQRA will have the more formal comment/response format but that’s not – we’re now in the formal EIS structure and that’s not typical of a DEIS stage.  We had initially talked about the comment/response when we were contemplating doing the expanded part III EAF but now that we’re in the more formally structured EIS process that’s just not customary practice nor is it required under SEQRA.  Practically speaking we’re obviously advised and informed by the comments up to date so it’s in our interest and benefit to respond as much as possible affirmatively but the truth is also that some of those comment letters raised issues that are not germane to the project that’s why they didn’t make their way into the revised scope that you have before you.  Logistically it would be nightmarish to get into an exercise of here’s a comment, look to page 4 in chapter 3, this comment not in the scope so my recommendation let us draft the EIS per the scope at the public hearing stage, everyone will have an opportunity to comment and then we’re required to respond to each of the substantive comments of the FEIS.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but you know, in as much as you do have access to some of the concerns that have been raised, it appears that you probably could design the development or the explication of the various sections so that those questions are in some way answered and then only follow-up questions need to be answered.  In other words, you’re not looking at it as a comment/response but knowing what the issue is or what the concern is you can actually devise the DEIS, taking into consideration some of the specific areas or the concerns that have been…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated or even referring to those concerns.

Mr. Brad Schwartz responded understood.  It obviously has to file the format in the outline of the scope, that’s also what was your completeness determination’s going to based on etc, but I certainly see no reason why in preparing these different sections when appropriate, we couldn’t refer to a particular comment letter as noted here to respond to it.  Not every line will be responded to but we’ll incorporate practically into the affirmative presentation. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it would seem if you can dispose of an issue or incorporate the issue and take the suggestion and make it part of your DEIS I think that will save you time on the FEIS side.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it will save you time and it will save some of us a lot of angst.  I find FEISs is terribly distracting because you’re dealing with a lot of information that’s not attached to anything that came with the DEIS.  Unless you are sitting there going back and forth between the two documents some of which are this thick, it’s an exercise almost sometimes in futility.  The more that you can address the issues of the residents in the area the more you can do that in the DEIS as we were saying, just take care of the issues, take care of the issues, take care of the issues then in fact, the FEIS will be a sense where there might be some follow up question on the given issue or concern but it won’t be jam packed with just comments and responses, and comments and responses.

Mr. Tim Miller stated I represent Mr. Giordano on this application.  One of the things that I just want to make note of is that the purpose of an Environmental Impact Statement is not to air out every question that comes up on the design of a project.  The law is very clear on what’s supposed to be in an Impact Statement.  It basically states that you’re supposed to be addressing those items that have the potential for a significant adverse environmental impact.  The law further states that EISs should address only those potential significant adverse impacts that can be reasonably anticipated or have been identified in scoping and should not contain more detail than is appropriate considering the nature and magnitude of the proposed action.  There’s a lot of comments that have come in and we certainly are going to look at them.  It just would be wise for us to write this without taking those into consideration but I think it’s our job and your job and your advisor’s job also to be mindful of what the law says here that we’re supposed to be looking at potential significant adverse impacts given the magnitude of the project.  There’s two aspects to what will be happening during this review: you’re going to have a public hearing on the draft Environmental Impact Statement that’s related to potential environmental impacts and you’re going to have a public hearing on a 6 lot subdivision that’s going to be related to the aspects of the 6 lot subdivision of technical aspects of the 6 lot subdivision and its layout and provisions for its access and for water and sewer service and things of that nature.  I agree with Brad and I think that generally it’s our common practice to focus on the potential significant environmental impacts and in that process try to answer as many questions as we can because it makes sense to do so, it’s the forum.  This is not the first time we’ve been before this Board with an Environmental Impact Statement and we make them nice and big and fat so there’s lots of information for you in there. 
Mr. Steven Kessler stated conceptually I agree with you Tim but I think in some sense you sort of have coming attractions here so you can say something in your DEIS and you’ll have these reports that may say something contrary to that so I think it behooves you to try and address some of those as part of the report. 

Mr. Tim Miller stated we may address them by the disagreeing of saying why which is absolutely provided for under the law. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that’s fine, I would expect that.

Mr. Tim Miller stated I think we’re on the same page. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I hope so. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated this project has obviously struck a nerve and so I think we can’t treat it like it’s in a vacuum.

Mr. Tim Miller responded I don’t see that we would or that it has been.  Scoping is supposed to be done in 60 days.  How long have we been doing scoping?  Six months.  It’s not in a vacuum.  It hasn’t been treated that way.  Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked any additional comments?

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated the other issue that Ms. Todd raised was the alternatives in the scope and right now it calls for an alternative with less roadway pavement subject to the Cortlandt Fire Department’s review, a cluster alternative and as well as the SEQRA mandated no-action alternative.  The two that came up was a reduced lot alternative as well as, correct me if I’m wrong, keeping of the storm water on site.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I thought that was a good idea, a good challenge.

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated it certainly sounds like it’s a challenge and I’ll let either Ralph or Tim respond to whether or not that’s viable and doable and worth explaining in the DEIS.  With respect with the 3 lot alternative, your Board knows, SEQRA does not require a reduced lot alternative to always be studied as a part of a project.  Mr. Giordano has known that’s been an issue, and raised in the past and he’s gone back on the economics.  Economics is a relevant consideration under SEQRA.  A reduced lot alternative is just not doable here.  Six lots on 24 acres, that’s his proposal so we want to be very clear and upfront to the Board that we don’t believe it’s a reasonable alternative, it’s not consistent with the applicant’s objectives and SEQRA only requires alternatives that are reasonable and consistent with the applicant’s objectives to be studied in the EIS.  Our preference and our request of your Board is that we do not include a reduced lot alternative in the scope review. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated I think you could include it and just say what you just said.  That’s usually what happens and I think it’s important because I think we want to see a reduced lot subdivision plan based on all the impacts to the road and other things. 

Mr. Brad Schwartz responded I think that’s acceptable.  I think I just wanted to again make sure how to deal with – I just want to make sure that we’re all on the same page and support completeness determination for example when you’ve got that response back that’s not going to catch anyone by surprise.  In terms of the storm water…you want us to design a system that keeps all the storm water…

Ms. Susan Todd stated the storm water on site that deals with the storm water on site doesn’t have an outflow…

Mr. Tim Miller asked it keeps on site forever?
Ms. Susan Todd responded for infiltration.

Mr. Tim Miller stated if you have a two inch storm on 24 acres, the quantity of water that you would have to retain and then infiltrate would be vast. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I think what we’re talking about keeping the post flow rates equal or less to the pre-development flow rates and the post development volume – equal or less to the pre-development volumes on site, not the entire storm water on the site.  Currently, right now, storm water sheet flows off site right now, correct?

Mr. Tim Miller responded that’s correct.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we’re not talking about keeping that on site.  We’re talking about the additional volume and flow rate staying on site. 

Mr. Tim Miller stated within the time frame of peak storm flows that would happen but the total volume you cannot do.  If you look at a hydrograph for a storm which might be a 24 hour storm, there’s going to be more volume coming off that site over time because that’s what has to happen post development than pre-development.  Rates, absolutely, that would be required and that’s part of our plan but volume I do not believe is possible.  You would need to dig a hole so deep well we’d have pond which would be the site.  Technically it just would not be manageable because of the size of the storms that we’d have to deal with.  It might be possible to actually reduce rates of volume slightly than current circumstances but there’s been a lot of comments expressing concern that we’re not drying out anybody downstream.  I think we’d better look at this carefully in terms of whether it’s actually a viable alternative.  I’m just not sure that it’s possible based on the way you’ve just described it Ms. Todd.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I think the point is the ground water recharges become more and more of a focus, as you’re aware.

Mr. Tim Miller stated I think we can certainly look at avenues for ground water recharge as part of storm water plan.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated ground water recharge would help keep that post development increase in volume.

Ms. Susan Todd stated count wells too…

Mr. Tim Miller stated if there was an alternative that said explore additional avenues for ground water recharge I would be comfortable with that.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I believe that’s what we’re talking about. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated yes.  Part of it is for neighboring wells and not having problems with this.

Mr. Tim Miller stated I don’t think that would be a problem to take a look at it as an alternative.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any other comments or concerns from…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I think the issue of the soil survey was also one that we were talking about.  Whether you’re doing site specific surveys or not and were you going to address that?

Mr. Tim Miller responded there have been deep hole tests on site already.  There’s not a reason we would do any further testing for on site soils.  We do not need to do it structurally because the likelihood that there’s an issue to support a single family home is practically nil.  We have data from the on site septic testing and we believe that provides a reasonable picture of what types of soils are on site along with the information from the Westchester County Soil Conservation Service maps and manual.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I asked our soils and ground water hydro-geologist that very question and they felt at this point in the process what we have in the scoping document any information that the applicant does have available would be sufficient at this point in the process. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked this point meaning the DEIS?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.  All the comments that we received from the public, they’re all relevant and they will all be addressed at some point in the SEQRA process and subsequent approval process because there is subdivision approval, their building permit approvals.  All these issues will be addressed eventually.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked from the audience, is there anyone here who wants to make a comment regarding this application?
Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated on behalf of the Arboretum.  Before I get to my own points I’d like to address two points that were raised by the applicant’s consultants with your permission.  1) The scoping process and discussion of it began in August which is not that long ago and the other one is that in terms of an alternative being presented that manages the ground water on site, that was suggested by one of the resident’s consultants as being feasible and it was in fact a large pond that would be surrounded by or have the houses on the banks of the pond.  I don’t believe that it’s entirely impossible as has been represented.  Moving to my own points, before I got to the scoping document I had two questions for Mr. Lodes.  I came across, in the project file, an invoice to the Town for research of re: the scoping document and the role of the Planning Board in defining the document and I would like to know what your recommendations to the Town was on those two points. 
Mr. Karl Lodes responded I render advice to the Board.  I don’t render advice to the public.  I’m privileged communications with this Board and the attorney.
Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated then my specific question is: does this Board have the authority to require the applicant to do site specific testing if in fact that becomes necessary or do they not?

Mr. Karl Lodes responded if directed by the Board, I would answer that question.  I render, again, to the Board.  I don’t answer questions to the public.  That’s my function here.

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated so I don’t have an answer to that question.  Then moving right to the scoping document itself, what I would like to say about that document is that while staff has spent an enormous amount of time and effort making a comprehensive document, the level of detail asked for and their efforts are meaningless unless the applicant and his consultants are required to provide specific information.  You can’t answer the questions that are posed in that scope with general information.  Like, for example, the County Soil maps and the generalized maps that are prepared.  If, for example, you go to a restaurant and the waiter comes to your table and says “what will you have for dinner sir?” and you say “food.”  That’s not helpful and that’s an analogous situation to what is being presented here. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but Karen, if I may interrupt, the issue then becomes one of completeness of the DEIS.  So, to the extent that they answer questions it’s up to this Board and its consultants to determine whether those answers are complete in answering the question and if not then we certainly require additional information.  It’s really up to the applicant to make sure that they answer to our satisfaction and it isn’t just a cursory answer that’s skirts the issues. 

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated I actually wanted to get to points that you made and also that Mr. Bianchi made and the points are that perhaps you consider and perhaps you don’t consider the level of comprehensiveness to be overkill in this project.  First of all, the fact that it’s 6 houses is irrelevant to the enormous impacts it’s going to have on the Arboretum and some of the adjacent properties if this Board approves the project that has been designed.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that’s the whole purpose of the DEIS to show the impacts.  You’re telling us there are impacts, we don’t have the information yet to determine there’s an impact. 

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard responded I’ll tell you one thing that has disturbed me a great deal and it’s the reason that my own comments to the scope have attempted to be so comprehensive and that is that the Arboretum and the residents of Upland Lane have gone through a lot of trouble and a lot of expense to get credentialed professionals to address that scope and we’re very distressed, all of us individually and collectively, that those consultant’s reports have been relegated to the correspondence instead of being brought into the document itself whether the applicant is required to address it specifically, not just address and comment them saying “we looked at them and we disagree.”  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I agree with what you’re saying.  I do, because I think what we’re all saying to the applicant they would be remiss if they didn’t incorporate the comments or react or address their answers to reflect the issues that have been raised in those reports.  Quite honestly, as Brad said, when they come back with a DEIS and you guys come back up there and say “we don’t agree with this because our consultants came up with this.”  They’re going to have to respond to that whether they do it in the DEIS or do it in the FEIS they’re going to have to reconcile what your consultants are saying to what they’re saying and convince us as to who is right. 

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated Steve, I’m not sure that they can do that and I’ll tell you why, because, for example, just taking one of the applicant’s consultant, the engineer Riddick, Riddick was an engineer very specifically addressed the storm water management plan and lists all the issues in it.  No one expects the Board to read those reports or the Board to understand those reports because you’re not engineers and neither are we. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that’s why we have outside consultants as well that review the DEIS and advise staff and advises this Board.  That’s why we use the outside consultants because we’re not experts.  As I said earlier, we’re just lay people.

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard responded I know, but you had LBG who was your consultant and LBG provided, in my opinion, a mild critique of the issues that were raised in the storm water management plans that exists and we were so alarmed by so many things being overlooked that went out and the Arboretum got its consultants and the residents got their consultants because the Town’s consultant didn’t address things that were really quite dangerous.  We understand it’s unreasonable to expect this Board individually or collectively to grasp that and we don’t know what to do about that.  The fact that the Town’s consultant didn’t do that is what was the incentive to go get other ones. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but ultimately that’s why we have the DEIS, the FEIS, the consultant reports and the public hearing so that people can stand up and say “this is where they’re wrong.  This is where we disagree.”
Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard asked I get that but my question is: where does the authority come in?  Do you guys have the authority to say “okay, you Riddick are not the Town’s consultant of choice but the applicant has to address the issues that have been raised about the design of the storm water management plan?”

Mr. Steven Kessler responded absolutely.

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated thank you.  That’s what I wanted to hear. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked anybody disagree with that?  That’s the process.

Ms. Loretta Taylor statement it’s been the process.  I don’t understand why this is novel information.  It’s always been the process. 

Mr. John Neblo stated I take great comfort from the comments of Mr. Kessler.  I’m John Neblo from 23 Upland Lane.  My soul point was exactly that to be certain at some subsequent point that there’d be a critical analysis of the data provided by the consultants to the residents and a side-by-side comparison.  Perhaps the DEIS statement isn’t the appropriate time for it but it clearly needs to happen, a substantive discussion of the facts, the science, etc.  Just to repeat our concern as residents that careful look will take place and a measurement of data presented and some of the issues raised will be looked at in a fairly critical fashion.  I would just hate to see a regurgitation of the data that’s in the file again with nothing substantive added.  Having said that, I have great confidence in the Board demanding careful analysis of the questions and so look forward to the discussion in the future. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated again, along the lines of critical analyses of the materials, the documents, and the tests and whatever this Board has always had the weight of measuring one consultant’s words against another.  Ultimately it comes down to who do you believe.  Somebody says we can do this, somebody else says no you can’t.  We have to look at all the various parameters and get a feel for where a particular consultant may be a little bit askew of where we need to be but that comes with the process of examining the whole of the DEIS and looking at all these reports.  I remember mentioning to Karen and others, there’s a lot of reading, there’s a lot of study, there’s a lot of input, back and forth and back and forth and over time you get a feel for what things should be.  We’re not always right but we don’t deliberately set out to just ignore things.  We do try to make the best judgment.

Mr. John Neblo stated indeed Ms. Chairman, please I hope I didn’t give the impression to anybody on the Board – I take great comfort from Mr. Kessler’s comments, from your comments and in fact, from my interactions with the Town staff, again, who have been very responsive and very diligent in answering questions about process and it does give a great deal of confidence to me as a member of Upland Lane that the application will be evaluated properly but again, for the record…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated it’s not always the case that the neighborhood this early in the process introduced so many reports and had your own independent consultants looking at it and so for that reason we’re definitely encouraging the applicant to pay attention to some of that at this point to at least the big issues so that we’re a step of it when we get to the next step.

Mr. John Neblo stated I suspect the applicant’s gotten the message and he knows we’re not going away and these questions need to be addressed.  We have confidence in the Board, thank you for your time. 

Ms. Joann Whalen stated I was asked to read a letter which was prepared for the Board by Lee and Karen Streisfeld-Leitner who are unable to attend.  With your permission I’d like to read this into the record.  “Dear Ms. Taylor and members of the Board, we are unable to be present at this evening’s Planning Board meeting but we are submitting this letter to stress some of our concerns regarding the proposed Upland Lane development, especially at this moment when the Board is prepared to approve the scope of the draft Environmental Impact Statement that is to be required of the developer Mr. Giordano.  First and foremost, we want to stress the issue that predominates much of the discussion.  We all live downhill from the development.  We’re all on wells and many of us already experience problems with interior or exterior flooding so the DEIS must strongly address issues of runoff, septic, soil testing, hydrology, etc.  Furthermore, in a previous letter we pointed out how plainly unacceptable it was that Giordano originally provided such testing and planning, albeit insufficient, for the 700 to 800 feet of road in his proposed development but failed to do so for the quarter of mile of the existing Lane that he proposes to widen by 60% to 80%.  So, here again, we believe that the Board must insist that the DEIS address all of these water related issues for the existing lane as rigorously as it does for the Upland Estates development.  In sum, we suggest that all of the requirements currently listed in the draft document last revised November 17th, 2010 as pertains as to the issues of the runoff, septic, etc remain exactly as they are listed in the November 17th draft.  Next, the issue has come up previously regarding future cost of maintaining a widened Lane and our position is that it would be patently unjust for current Lane residents to bear future increase costs of 60% to 80% for more asphalt that we don’t want, unjust to the point that we feel it would be actionable.  In section 3D-2A of the current scope document, it is required that Giordano submit a summary of the provisions of ownership and year-round maintenance.  By itself this is wholly insufficient as the village does not seem to be dictating what those provisions would be.  Mr. Giordano has previously suggested an informal arrangement between current Laners and Upland Estates residents per the current arrangement on the Lane.  Regrettably, however, such an informal agreement between Lane residents is already not working satisfactorily as demonstrated by the current state of the Lane which has been remarked on, on the record, by Giordano’s own consultants.  Furthermore, an informal agreement is unenforceable except by litigation.  The funds for repair and maintenance of the widened Lane must be provided up front so that 2 or 20 years from now residents are not left with the only option of pursuing $50,000 worth of litigation every time we need to get a property owner to pay his $250 or $1,500 share of annual maintenance cost.  In a prior letter we strongly suggested that Mr. Giordano be required to furnish the Town with a performance bond to cover maintenance costs for the next 99 years as suggested in Town Code section 265-1.  Such a provision or something similar in function and enforceability must be included in the DEIS or otherwise nailed down at this time.  Note that this provision must not only take into account the future increase cost of maintaining the asphalt but also the immediate and ongoing increase cost of maintaining and plowing it.  Finally, we want to bring up one issue that is not related to the DEIS, namely that of the exceptions to the Town Law that Giordano was granted concerning the length of the driveway into Upland Estates and for a cul-de-sac with a smaller than required diameter.  Specifically, we want it on the record why these exceptions were granted as we have not been able to find such an account of the Board’s decision.  Although Town Law does indeed grant the Board the discretion to make such exceptions, I would assume that the granting of such discretion is not meant to be carte blanche to act arbitrarily, perspicuously and without justification as that would make the Town’s Laws regarding length of driveways and widths of cul-de-sacs fairly ineffectual and irrelevant.  Our apologies if we haven’t been listed on the record but if not we again request that the Board make a formal statement on the record justifying its reasoning.  Sincerely yours, Lee Streisfeld-Leitner, Karen Streisfeld-Leitner.”  I don’t know if you want to comment to that?
Mr. Steven Kessler responded I think if we could just get a copy. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we have a copy of it. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s actually one of the ones that came in today so you’ll get it. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked they are downhill there on the lower Lane?

Ms. Joann Whalen responded yes.  They’re first house as you come in on the left.

Mr. Robert Foley stated oh, on the left not the right.  They are contiguous to the property, not across the Lane. 

Ms. Joann Whalen responded no, to Mount Airy as you turn into Mount Airy. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated with respect to one of the comments to see if I understand it correctly, one of the last comments concerning the length of the driveway into Upland Estates, we have something in the scope that says they have to explain to us “conformance to Town road design standard for the internal subdivision road including the length of the road.”  So, they have to explain if their road is a total of 1,000 feet or 1,500 or 2,000 and our Code says 500 why that should be acceptable to the Board.  They have to answer that. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated part of that answer may be to address the Con Edison easement that does join with the road.  Why don’t you explain that Brad?

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated as Chris alluded to, there’s a requirement in your Code regarding the length of dead-end streets and we were very careful to include in the scoping document that we need to address whether or not we even need an exception from your Board from that requirement.  There is currently a Con Ed easement that runs across the property that, depending upon what that’s used for an accessed for emergency vehicles, it’s very possible that in the way the road gets defined we wouldn’t need that exception.  To be clear, no exceptions have been granted by your Board as of tonight, so there’s been no exercise of discretion.  That’s an issue that we know we need to address in the scope, either by explaining why we don’t need an exception or that we do and to justify why. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any other comments?

Ms. Joann Whalen stated I would like to make my own comments if could please.  For months I have stood before this Board and I have always said basically the same thing that the lower Lane needs a plan, a comprehensive plan and I’m having a problem with the scoping document where the lower Lane is being addressed and every once in a while I’ll see lower Lane or I’ll just see the upper Lane but there’s been no plan that we, on the lower Lane, see as being addressed per se in the scoping document. 

Mr. Ed Vergano asked you’re talking about the point beyond the entrance to the property?

Ms. Joann Whalen responded I’m talking about the 1,200 feet from Mount Airy until you make the turn in front of the Neblo’s at 23 and go up.  There’s 1,200 feet.  That’s what the lower Lane is.  You’ve got 6 residential houses there and that’s our concern.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated to be honest with you, what we tried to do is we never fully understood and you were the one generally differentiating between the lower and upper Upland Lane so if there are still references to upper and lower we tried to eliminate those and just call it Upland Lane.  There is, and I know you commented on this, we do have on page 2 ‘discussion of Upland Lane road improvement plan.’  From our perspective that’s all of Upland Lane, from Mount Airy to the project entrance into the project. 

Ms. Joann Whalen stated that’s fine Chris.  My issue then is that plan, we have no plan so when Mr. Miller stands before the Board and says “you don’t need to address everything in the design but you have to address the potential for significant adverse environmental impacts and those which are reasonably anticipated.”  We can’t even really address for use, although we have tried to through our experts, the potential impacts for the lower Lane because we don’t have a real design in place for the lower Lane.  When we’re talking about this it’s always been, and the designs are really basically for the upper Lane and it’s been the storm water on the upper Lane, it’s the placement, it’s the soil samples, it’s the runoff, it’s all this other stuff and when we’re trying to do is to make sure that we, the residents, who have spent thousands of dollars for experts that we are included in this in every single aspect from your widening of your road, your tree preservation, the swales, everything that’s in it and so in the scoping document as it is, somewhere we’ve got Upland Lane and some places we have the lower Lane and somewhere we have upper again.  Just to have a whole – if you want to say that you’re going to include everything for the upper that you’re going to include, then you will then include it for the lower Lane, then we can deal with that but they have to realize it’s not in that document per se, not as I read it.  I’ve said it from the beginning: where’s the plan for the lower Lane and I just want to make sure that at this stage because we’ve spent all the money for the consultants not only for the upper portion of the Lane but for the lower as well, that all of that is taken into account, that that design of the lower Lane is addressed in the scoping document with everything that it entails including the wells, the septics, the ground water, the whole nine yards. 
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I did read through your comments and where we say on letter #3a)4e) “discussion of Upland Lane road improvement plan” we could add some language to that to – I think what we mean is they are proposing, which is the central debate that what you call the Laner’s have, certain improvements that they’re going to make to that lane.  They’re going to widen it, they’re going to make what they call “improvements” and you’ve raised concern on how many trees are going to come down.  What are they going to do with the drainage?  What are they going to do with the culvert?  The way I read that and I guess Brad can agree or disagree is that they have to explain what they’re going to do to the lower Lane. 

Ms. Joann Whalen stated I just want to make sure that everybody is on the same playing field here and we all understand it.  This is a project which has been delineated into two separate sections: you’ve got the upper Lane which is the construction, it’s the houses, it’s all that; you’ve got the lower Lane which is another 1,200 feet which really has never been addressed and that’s what we, the Laner’s, the people that have spent the money, the people that live, the people who will continue to live there after this is over, this is what we have to address and make sure that it’s in the scope sufficiently to address our concerns. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we believe it is but we will clarify it further.  We’ll make sure that it’s there.

Ms. Joann Whalen responded that will be fine.  Procedurally, once you guys have an opportunity to go back and do that, will we have an opportunity before you have a final approval, before the Board approves the DEIS to comment on what you’re adding to the document.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I would think that the intent is the Planning Board’s got to give us some direction about what they want us to add to the scope tonight.  We usually have – you mean the scope. 

Ms. Joann Whalen responded I’m talking about the scope, because if it’s not in the scope they don’t have to do it, is that not correct?  

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded the idea is that what you want in the scope’s got to be in the scope tonight. 

Ms. Joann Whalen responded exactly. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe continued and I think our position is that we covered the lower Lane.  Ed said that he could double check to see if we need to add anything more to that. 

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated for example on page 4 under ‘maintenance’, it’s just one example that comes out at me: “summary of provisions for ownership and year-round maintenance of the entire proposed road (both the lower Lane and the new proposed road internal to the subdivision).”  So, that’s the intent throughout this document in terms of, and to the extent that we’re – this is the lower Lane, this is Mount Airy and so this is the lower Lane heading into the project site.  Our EIS is absolutely going to deal with all this pavement, how the storm water is being handled, tree removal, the current garbage bins, fences, plantings anything else that’s in the right-of-way whether we relocate it or spare it, etc.
Mr. Chris Kehoe asked are you proposing any drainage?

Mr. Brad Schwartz responded proposing drainage, exactly.  All the maintenance, improvements, we are talking about the “lower Lane” and the upper Lane which I’m first learning tonight, means the internal subdivision road. 

Ms. Joann Whalen stated I’ve been talking about that for a year, the difference between the two Lanes and there’s only always been one construction, the plan for the upper as opposed to the lower. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated why don’t we fix our terminology once and for all tonight and the lower Lane is the existing Lane and the internal roadway will be your development.

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated that’s why for example here in parentheses it does differentiate between the lower Lane and the new proposed internal subdivision.

Ms. Joann Whalen stated just on certain areas.  Maintenance, obviously you have to deal with maintenance because that is an issue that the Laners are quite frankly out of their minds over who’s going to pay for this and how is that ever going to be implemented and enforced.  You guys would have to address that.  Other issues, I can see that what they’re telling us now is that it will be included in the whole entire project. 

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated inaudible under storm water…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what page?

Mr. Brad Schwartz responded page 6 “assess any change in storm water runoff from the Upland Lane and subdivision road plan including maintenance of the existing culverts because the culvert is under the lower Lane, that’s an example of an item that we want to add in the language to clarify including lower Lane and subdivision road subdivision road, that’s fine.  That’s absolutely the intent of what we have in this EIS.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I wouldn’t’ be overly concerned.  The scoping document is obviously a very important document and lays the groundwork for the development of the DEIS but many times in the process of developing the DEIS there are issues that come up that may not have been anticipated when developing the scoping document.  It’s perfectly okay to bring those issues up and it’s required by the applicant to address those issues. 

Ms. Joann Whalen stated that’s fine, just so long as we’re not precluded because it wasn’t in the document at this time. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I wouldn’t worry about that because believe me, there are going to be issues that are going to come up that are not specifically spelled out in the scoping document that will be addressed. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated in other words, at the DEIS stage hearings, if the lower Laners still feel it’s not being addressed or was forgotten, you’d bring it up then and there wouldn’t be an objection or would there Tim?

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I believe the way the document’s written right now, the intent is to evaluate all impacts to the lower Lane.  We’re going to clarify that.  All impacts is a very broad statement.  During the course of the development of the EIS there’s something that comes up in the drainage evaluation or the soils evaluation that requires further clarification, we’re going to require further clarification. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked so even Ms. Whalen’s reference on her letter of the 27th on page 2 about even trees on the lower Lane, that would all be included?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded we specifically call that out of the scope. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated it’s in the scope.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think we’ve hit the wall on this.  We’ve done this countless times.  There’s no way that we can probably assure everybody on the Lane that every concern that they have is going to be handled to their satisfaction but we will address concerns to the very best of our ability and I think that whether you live on the upper Lane or the lower Lane, for us, it’s all the same. 

Ms. Joann Whalen stated that’s great to know. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and always has been.  I don’t know why the Laners are constantly dividing themselves up but we’re not doing it that way. 

Ms. Joann Whalen stated I’ll tell you why because we didn’t have a construction plan for the lower Lane.  There was no tree preservation plan talked about at all.  There was never anything about the drainage, on quite the contrary they’re not going to do any drainage according to their experts.  They’re going to widen our road tremendously and they had no drainage plan in effect, they had no storm water in effect, they have no well testing in effect, they had no blasting plan in effect and as far as I know they still don’t so that’s why – they have that in place for the upper Lane but they didn’t have it in place for the lower Lane for us the residents, the people that live there and we have to have that 1,200 feet set forth, what the plan is and how it’s going to work.  Clearly, we know that we’ve had many, many conversations about it but one thing I want to say about and then I’ll sit down, but one thing I just want to say about the soil testing; just because you did it once doesn’t mean that it was necessarily done correctly and if you go from a false premise and let everything flow there from you’re always going to have a false premise.  The issue of soils samples and soil testing has been brought up every single meeting and it’s always been like “oh my God, we’ve done this, we’ve heard this, we’ve been there.”  But, really, it needs to be reexamined as to whether or not there was proper, sufficient soil testing at the right time of year, in the right places and correct readings were gotten.  Thank you for listening to us.  We appreciate it.  We know it’s been an ordeal but a lot of things are at stake here for an awful lot of people and we truly appreciate your time and your patience. 
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated there were two items that you mentioned two reports that we had not included in the appendices: the VP3 report and the John Grant report.  We’ll include both of those. 

Ms. Joann Whalen responded thank you. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated we’re assured that all references in the scope to Upland Lane are inclusive of what Ms. Whalen’s talking about the lower Lane.  So, if there was anything that was missed…

Mr. Tim Miller stated just for the record, from the applicant’s point-of-view, and I believe the scope is very clear on this, we’ve never separated this into two projects.  The project description is the improvements to the Lane going to the applicant’s property and the improvements in the applicant’s property and the scope and the project description I think clearly sets that forth.  It requires a construction plan and road profiles and that’s the project so all the impacts section pertains to the project.  That’s the project.  I’m not sure where it comes from that this was separated and… but from my point-of-view that’s what we’re doing. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re all on the same page finally, I hope. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated because we’ve changed it so many times a, b’s and c’s messed up and numbers messed up, those will all be corrected. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated should we miss one, just be assured that we’ve got it under control.  Everything’s going to be okay.  Did you have some additional things you wanted to say?

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated if it would help to summarize and clarify, we’re on the same page regarding how we’re treating and responding to incorporating the reports that have been submitted to date.  They’ll be the changes to the alternative section to include the reduced lot alternative as well as the water recharge.  We’re going to go throughout the scope and just clarity further that the Upland Lane refers to the upper and the lower, I guess Chris two reports will be added to the appendix but otherwise it sounds like we’re there so I would request that your Board adopt the scoping document subject to those modifications that I just identified. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we can have a motion on that. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I move that we close the public hearing.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we adopt the scoping document as revised on 11/17 subject to the changes we discussed tonight as Brad outlined in terms of the alternatives including the 3 lot alternative, also on the alternatives, the recharge as Ed discussed about the storm water management on the property itself and also clarifying the internal and the lower Lane roadways so that it’s very clear that the scoping document is going to address, as Tim Miller said, the entire project from Mount Airy up into the project site, and the two reports. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and also, you would be adopting Resolution 62-10 which you don’t have which is just a procedure saying how you adopt the scope.  You held a public hearing on such and such a date so you actually adopt the scope by Resolution.

Mr. Robert Foley asked we have to cite the Resolution number?  We are definitely going to be adopting?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated adopting the scope as amended based upon our discussions this evening. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked that’s your 62?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you’ll get us copies of that right?

Seconded. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so the last sentence “that pursuant to SEQRA regulations, the Planning Board adopts the attached scope of its last revised on December 7th” so that would be the one that we are now amending and we’re adopting. 
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it says now revised November 17th but we’ll say revised December 7th.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but it’s the one from November 17th as revised this evening?

Mr. Robert Foley asked we’re actually voting on that?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it will actually say as this line says “it’s last revise is December 7th.”

Mr. Robert Foley asked did we vote on this part?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded no we’re going to vote now on this part.  

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the Resolution 62-10 becomes the Resolution to move this forward as far as the scope is concerned.

Mr. Brad Schwartz stated thank you.  Happy Holidays and Ms. Todd congratulations on your service to the Board and the community and on behalf of David Steinmetz and myself we wish you good luck in the future.



*



*



*
OLD BUSINESS 
PB 20-06    a.
Application of Joseph Picciano for Final Plat approval for a 4 lot major subdivision of 16.55 acres for property located on the south side of Maple Avenue at the intersection with Furnace Woods Road and east of Montrose Station Road as shown on a Final Plat entitled “Four Lot Subdivision prepared for Joseph Picciano” prepared by Donald D. Coleman, P.L.S. dated June 21, 2010 and on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Integrated Plot Plan for Joseph V. Picciano” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated October 13, 2010.

Mr. John Klarl stated this was on the agenda earlier tonight. 
Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we prepare a Resolution for the January meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
Mr. John Klarl stated Madame Chairwoman we have in front of us a memo I did to yourself, Chris Kehoe and Ed Vergano containing a proposed stipulation settlement on Ryan vs. Town of Cortlandt as to one item in our Resolution that was condition 10 and I lay out on page 2 the revised condition 10 which has been suggested and approved by the court and I ask someone to make a motion to authorize me to sign the stipulation settlement and the attorney for the petition will sign it and the court will so order it.

So moved, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I wanted to just bring up this issue because we need to take a vote apparently, in public, on the issue of the 3 minute time limit.   Some people may be aware of the fact that the Board had recently voted to implement some changes coming up in January of 2011.  One of them was a limit in our hearings, generally speaking, a 3 minute time limit for many people who wanted to get up and speak.  There were numerous exceptions to this and I think people took exception first to the fact that there was a 3 minute time limit imposed and secondly to the fact that they were actually exceptions that accepted; lawyers and consultants and applicants and members or heads of advocacy groups, homeowners groups, these people would have had additional time to speak because they were speaking for larger numbers of people.  In any event, apparently some people are very unhappy with that and we’ve been asked by the Town Board to reconsider the vote that we made, generally, to accept all of those new innovations for this Board.  We are going to take a vote tonight on whether or not we should retain the 3 minute time limit or get rid of it.  We sort of talked about this at the work session and it appears that we are going to eliminate that 3 minute time limit.  Let’s just for the sake of the public kind of…
Mr. John Klarl stated I think we should vote on it since you voted to enact the rules, now we’re going to vote to rescind that portion of the rules. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated what we’re going to do is vote on the rescinding of that so I guess we have to frame it someway.  Give me a good way to frame that.

Mr. John Klarl stated someone makes a motion to rescind that portion of the rules that were adopted by the Board in November and that portion of the rules that deals with the 3 minute rule in item #6 of the rules.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that this Board rescinds item #6 in reference specifically to a 3 minute time limitation on the public speaking portion.

Seconded.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated on the question, last time at the last meeting I abstained because, as I said, I thought it was the Chairs prerogative to run the meetings as they saw fit.  Certainly, I was always opposed to delimitations of the 3 minute rule because that’s not how I conducted things when I sat in that chair.  In the interest of eliminating it I certainly would be willing to vote to repeal it tonight so that we can get the votes to repeal that aspect of the proceedings. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated also on the question, I’m going to be voting to oppose to the repeal only because I feel that there should be some type of limitation, I’m not necessarily married to the 3 minute rule but some type of limiting factor that we can utilize to keep our meetings to the point and at reasonable lengths.  For that reason I will be voting opposed to it. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’ll be voting to rescind it but I’m not happy doing it and I think I agree with you Tom that there needs to be some mechanism by which we, in some way, try to keep a little more control in terms of these meetings, these hearings and I’m talking especially about those very lengthy ones that are somewhat contentious and they go on and on and on, people get up and speak 3 times.  It really does – after a point we all know that we’ve heard probably every single argument and if the hearing has gone on for 2, 3, 4 sessions, we’ve heard them repeatedly.  I do not, however, want to begin the second year of my tenure here with a level of distraction, let me put it that way.  I came into this chair under somewhat less than satisfactory circumstances and I feel like it’s been dogging me all year.  I would like to see getting up into 2011 on a good foot, get started and move.  There are other issues and other concerns that we have as a Board that have been addressed with those new guidelines for how we will run the meetings with the new procedural matters but I do feel that I need to just say I’m very disappointed with the fact that people wanted to throw this out without even trying it.  It does work in other instances with other Boards, in other places and it possibly could work here.  What I’m also disappointed about is the fact that people have sort of raised an unnecessary storm around this and I think that rather than sort of give us a chance for the three months that we said we would try it, just arbitrarily decided that they don’t want a limit.  Again, as I said, I’m only agreeing to rescind it because I would like to start the New Year off without a lot of cantankerous melodrama and so I’m going to go with it and my vote will therefore cast the deciding vote to rescind it but we have not yet voted.  I just want people to know that I’m very disappointed.  All those in favor of rescinding: “aye”, opposed; “opposed.”

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Mr. Rothfeder; aye, Mr. Kessler; aye, Mr. Bianchi; opposed, Ms. Taylor; aye, Ms. Todd; aye, Mr. Foley; aye. 5 to 1. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we now have this rescinding of that particular item 6 and we will try to see if we can work at finding another measure which will hopefully bring a level of control here.  We had one hearing tonight, as you can see how long that one lengthy hearing took, actually we had more than one but the others were very, very easy ones.  When you have several of them in a row on one night it can almost get out of control.  Again, it is what it is and everybody – once again I want to say thank you to Susan for her exceptional service on the Board.  We really will miss you and we wish you the very, very best.  I want to say to everybody my Board and to the Town as well have a very happy and safe Holiday season.



*
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ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated motion to adjourn.
Next Meeting: WEDNESDAY, January 5, 2011

I, SYLVIE MADDALENA, a Transcriptionist for the Town of Cortlandt as a subcontractor, do hereby certify that the information provided in this document is an accurate representation of the Planning Board meeting minutes to the best of my ability.
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